
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, 23rd January, 2013 

 
10.00 am 

 
Medway Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 

Maidstone 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 23rd January, 2013, at 10.00 am Ask for: Peter Sass 
Medway Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone 

Telephone: 01622 694002 

 
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting in the meeting room 
 
Membership  
 
Mrs A D Allen, Mr L Christie, Mr D S Daley, Mr K A Ferrin, MBE and Mr L B Ridings, MBE 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 
 

1 
 

Substitutes/apologies  
  

 
 

2 
 

Election of Chairman  
  

 
 

3 
 

Election of Vice Chairman  
  

 
 

4 
 

Declarations of Interest  
  

 
 

5 
 

Minutes of the former Standards Committee - 26 June 2012 (Pages 1 - 4) 
  

 
 

6 
 

Localism Act 2011- Member Dispensations (Pages 5 - 10) 
  

 
 

7 
 

Any other urgent business  
  

 
 

8 
 

Date of Next Meeting  
  



 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services  
(01622) 694002 
 
Tuesday, 15 January 2013 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
 
 



 

 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Standards Committee held in the Stour Room, 
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 26 June 2012. 
 
PRESENT: Miss R MacCrone (Chairman), Mrs N Ahmed, OBE, DL, Mr D S Daley, 
Mr P Gammon, MBE and Mr J F London (Substitute for Mr K A Ferrin, MBE) 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr G Wild (Director of Governance and Law) and 
Mr P D Wickenden (Democratic Services Transition Manager) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
URGENT BUSINESS  
 
In accordance with the Access to Information Act requirements it had not been 
possible to publish the papers in accordance with the statutory requirements.  The 
Committee therefore agreed to declare the business urgent on the grounds that it had 
not been possible to publish the papers any earlier because of the late publication of 
government regulations and the consequential ongoing dialogue with local authorities 
across Kent which has led to the almost universal acceptance of the Kent Code of 
Conduct and Arrangements. 
  

46. Substitutes/apologies  
(Item 1) 
 
The Committee noted apologies from Mr K Ferrin MBE, Mr L Christie and Mr P Sass, 
Head of Democratic Services. Mr J  London attended the meeting as substitute for Mr 
Mr K Ferrin MBE. 
 
47. Declarations of Interest  
(Item 2) 
 
Mrs Ahmed declared an interest as a potential applicant for the post of “independent 
person”.in the report on the “Localism Act 2011 – Adoption of a New Standards 
Regime  
 
48. Minutes of the meeting held on 26 April 2012  
(Item 3) 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26 April 2012 are correctly 
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman subject to the replacement of 
“and” for “or” in Minute 44 paragraph (13) 
 
49. Localism Act 2011 - Adoption of a New Standards Regime  
(Item 4) 
 

(1) Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 the existing Standards regime 
ceases to operate on 30 June 2012. The transitional arrangements are very 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



 

 

limited and do not allow for the old arrangements to continue. The Act puts in 
place a system of requiring Members to notify the Monitoring Officer of a new 
category of interests (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests “DPI”) and requires him 
to maintain a public register of those interests. Additionally, the council must, 
with effect from 1 July 2012 adopt a new code of conduct and put in place 
arrangements for investigating allegations of failure to comply with the code 
and for making decisions in respect  of those allegations. 

 
(2) The Committee had before them a detailed and complex report on which their 

views and recommendations were sought for the County Council on 19 July 
2012 who would be asked to adopt a new Standards regime. 

 
(3) The report had been prepared by the Monitoring Officers and Chief Legal 

Officers across the County including the Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue 
Authority but excluding Medway Council. 

 
(4) After a comprehensive and detailed debate of all the issues the Standards 

Committee RESOLVED to recommend to the County Council on 19 July 2012 
the following: 

 
(a) That the Council adopts the Kent Model Code of Conduct which deals with 

the conduct expected of members and co-opted members of this authority 
when they are acting in that capacity. The Code to be retrospectively  
effective from 1 July 2012. 

 
(b) That the Council notes the requirements of the Localism Act for members to 

notify the Monitoring Officer of any DPIs by 28 July 2012 and the duty of the 
Monitoring Officer to establish and maintain a register of member’s 
interests.The Committee endorsed the letter and  declaration form to be sent 
immediately to all Members. 

 
(c) That the council adopts the arrangements under which allegations of non-

compliance with the Code can be investigated and under which decision can 
be made. The arrangements shall be retrospectively effective from 1 July 
2012. The County Council delegates to the Monitoring Officer and the 
Hearing Panel the right to depart from these arrangements where considered 
expedient to do so in order to secure the effective and fair consideration of 
any matter. 

 
(d) That the existing Standards Committee be dissolved with effect from midnight 

on 30 June 2012. 
 
(e) That as from 1 July 2012 a new Standards Committee be established with 

the Terms of Reference and Delegations set out in the appendix to the 
report. 

 
(f) That the County Council dis-applies the proportionality arrangements and 

appoints 3 members one from each political group to serve on the new 
Standards Committee 

 
(g) That the Director of Governance and Law in consultation with the three 

Group Leaders and the Chairman of the Selection and Members Services 

Page 2



 

 

Committee be authorised to undertake the recruitment of an independent 
person and a substitute to discharge the functions ascribed by section 28 of 
the Localism Act 2011. This recruitment process and the interchangeability of 
the Independent Person to substitute for the Kent and Medway Fire and 
Rescue Authority was welcomed The appointments to be retrospectively 
effective from1 July 2012 and to be for a term of 5 years and 1 day. 

 
(h) That the remuneration package for the Independent Person be as follows 
(i) a retainer fee of £500 per annum; 
(ii) £100 per day (pro rata for a part day) 
(iii) standard mileage allowance; and 
(iv) full indemnity insurance 
 
(i) That the scheme of officer delegations with regard to Council functions be 

amended as from 1 July 2012, so as to confer on the Monitoring Officer  the 
delegations for discharging section 33 (1) and (2) of the Localism Act 2011 

 
(j) Adopt the Procedure Rules with effect from 1 July2012 
 
(k) That the  Monitoring Officer be requested to keep the Code and 

arrangements under review and to report to the Council or Standards  
Committee as necessary 

 
(Note as a potential applicant for the post of independent person Mrs N Ahmed 
withdrew from the meeting for consideration of the Independent Person’s 
remuneration package) 
 
50. New Template for the Annual Review Report  
(Item 5) 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee endorse the new template for annual review reports 
and invite all members to complete their report for the period 1 April 2011 to 31 
March 2012. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

By:   Geoff Wild – Director of Governance and Law 
 
To:   Standards Committee – 23 January 2013 
 
Subject:   Localism Act 2011 – Member dispensations 
 

Purpose:  The Committee is recommended to delegate authority to the 
Monitoring Officer to grant dispensations to Members for the 
remainder of the term of this Council, i.e. until Tuesday 7 May 
2013 to enable their participation in a range of matters previously 
permitted under the 2007 Member Code of Conduct, including the 
setting of the Council’s budget and Council Tax.  

 
Unrestricted 

 
Summary 
 
1. As well as repealing the legislation relating to the 2007 Model Code of 
Member Conduct, the Localism Act 2011 also repealed a number of general 
dispensations for Members. In particular, there are no relieving provisions for 
Members to enable them to consider certain matters, such as the setting of the 
Council’s Budget and the Council Tax, and approving the Members’ Allowances 
Scheme. 
 
2. The 2007 Code of Conduct at paragraph 10(2) stated that: 
 

You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the authority 
where that business relates to: 
 

(i) School meals or school transport and travelling expenses, 
where you are a parent or guardian of a child in full-time 
education, or are a parent governor of a school, unless it 
relates particularly to the school which the child attends; 

 
(ii) Statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security 

Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt 
of, or are entitled to the receipt of, such pay; 

 
(iii) An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members; 

 
(iv) Any ceremonial honour given to Members; and 

 
(v) Setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government 

Finance Act 1992 
 
3. According to the Department of Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG), it was not the Government’s intention that Members would be regarded 
as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) in these specific areas, hence 
there is no relieving provision in the statutory regime. However, the law is far 
from clear on this issue and does not explicitly support the DCLG position. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



 

 

 
4. For the avoidance of doubt, therefore, it is recommended that this 
Committee delegates authority to the Monitoring Officer to grant dispensations 
for Members to participate in budget and Council Tax setting (and other matters 
– see paragraph 9 of this report).  
 
Dispensations under the Localism Act 2011 Part 1 Chapter 7 
 
5. The Localism Act 2011 and the current Code of Member Conduct 
(adopted by this Council on 19 July 2012 and applicable retrospectively from 1 
July 2012) provides for the disclosure by Members and co-opted Members of 
two types of interests: 
 

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (as described in Appendix 1), 
where it is an interest of either the Member, the Member’s spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom they are living as husband and wife or 
civil partners, and provided the Member is aware that the other person 
has the interest; and 

 
(b) Other Significant Interests (OSIs). An interest that affects the financial 

position of a Member and/or an Associated Person; or relates to the 
determination of a Member’s application for any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration made by, or on behalf of, the Member 
and/or Associated Person; and which, in either case, a member of the 
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as 
being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement 
of the public interest. 

 
6. The disclosure of a DPI involves the registration of interests in the 
Members’ Register of Interests and disclosure at a Council, Cabinet or 
Committee meeting. A Member having a DPI may not: 
 

(a) Participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting, or 

 
(b) Participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the 

meeting, as a result the Member must leave a meeting while any 
discussion or vote takes place. 

 
7. A Member with an OSI may attend a meeting but only for the purpose of 
making representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the 
business, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the 
same purpose. The Member is required to withdraw from the meeting room 
immediately after making representations, answering questions or giving 
evidence. 
 
8. However, section 33(1) of the Localism Act 2011 provides that the 
Council may grant a dispensation to a Member who has a DPI to enable the 
Member to participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter at the 
meeting.  
 

Page 6



 

 

9. The Code of Member Conduct states at paragraph 8 that a dispensation 
may only be granted in the following circumstances: 
 

(a) Where the Member has made a written request to the Monitoring Officer 
 
(b) Where the Council considers that without the dispensation the number of 

persons prohibited from participating in any particular business would be 
so great a proportion of the body transacting the business as to impede 
the transaction of the business 

 
(c) Where the Council considers that without the dispensation the 

representation of different political groups on the body transacting any 
particular business would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of 
any vote relating to the business 

 
(d) Where the Council considers that granting the dispensation is in the 

interests of persons living in the Council’s area, and 
 
(e) Where the Council considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 

dispensation. 
 
10. However, the Localism Act 2011 and its Regulations do not provide any 
relieving provisions for any of the circumstances described in paragraph 2 
above and, therefore, it is recommended that the Monitoring Officer be 
requested by this Committee to grant such dispensations. The record of this 
Committee’s decision on this matter will suffice as a written request on behalf of 
all Members of the Council. The dispensation is requested for the following 
reasons: 
 

(a) Without the dispensation, the number of persons prohibited from 
participating in the budget and council tax setting item, together with the 
approval of the Members’ Allowances Scheme and ceremonial honours 
at County Council meetings, would be so great a proportion of the body 
transacting the business as to impede the transaction of business 

 
(b) Granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the 

Authority’s area 
 
11. With regard to the proposed dispensation in relation to the setting of the 
Budget and Council Tax, section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 still applies, which means that any Member who is in arrears of Council 
Tax of two months or more may must disclose the fact of their arrears and 
cannot vote on any relevant meeting.  
 
Recommendations: 
 
12.  Accordingly, it is recommended that this Committee requests the 
Monitoring Officer to grant a blanket dispensation for all council Members from 
23 January 2013 to 7 May 2013 for the following: 
 

Page 7



 

 

(a) The approval of the Council’s Revenue and Capital Budget and 
the setting of the Council Tax (unless in arrears as explained in 
Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992) 

 
(b) The approval of any borrowing under the Local Government Act 

2003 
 

(c) The making of calculations under s49A and 49B of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 

 
(d) The approval of an allowance, payment or indemnity to 

Members 
 

(e) A ceremonial honour given to Members 
 
 
Geoff Wild – Director of Governance and Law 

geoff.wild@kent.gov.uk  

(01622 694302) 

January 2013 

Page 8



 

 

Appendix 1 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS  

(as prescribed by regulations) 

The descriptions on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests are subject to the 
following definitions: 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011 

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in 
which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the 
relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an 
industrial and provident society 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land 
which does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly 
with another) to occupy the land or to receive income 

“M” means a member of the relevant authority 

“member” includes a co-opted member  

“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on 
which M gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1), or section 
31(7), as the case may be, of the Act 

“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 
30(3)(b) of the Act (the Member’s spouse, civil partner, or somebody with 
whom they are living as a husband or wife, or as if they were civil 
partners). 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, 
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the 
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money deposited with a building society 

 

Interest Description 

Employment, 
office, trade, 
profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the relevant authority) made 
or provided within the relevant period in respect of 
any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties as 

Page 9



 

 

a member, or towards the election expenses of M.  
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union 
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant 
person (or a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest) and the relevant authority: 

(a)  under which goods or services are to be provided 
or works are to be executed; and 

(b)  which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area 
of the relevant authority. 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy 
land in the area of the relevant authority for a month 
or longer. 

Corporate 
tenancies 

Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge): 

(a)  the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b)  the tenant is a body in which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; 
and 

(b)  either 

(i)  the total nominal value of the securities exceeds 
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

(ii)  if the share capital of that body is of more than 
one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 

 

Page 10


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the former Standards Committee - 26 June 2012
	6 Localism Act 2011- Member Dispensations

